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This August we are inviting all living 

in Donnybrook to join in a celebration 

of the 150th anniversary of the 

establishment of the Parish of the 

Sacred Heart, Donnybrook.  

The anniversary provides a unique 

occasion to reflect on our history and 

our future as a Christian community 

here in Donnybrook. Our future, like 

our past, depends on the willingness of 

each one of us to take some time to 

connect with and serve our fellow 

parishioners – in particular by 

volunteering in the various ministries 

and groups active in our parish. Every 

one of us, young and old, has a role to 

play according to our different gifts and 

talents. The anniversary will be a joyful 

time to remember and give thanks for 

all the blessings we have received. But 

it will equally be a time to commit 

ourselves to renewing and 

reinvigorating the life of our parish.  

THE PROGRAMME 

Friday 26th August 

Mass will be celebrated in the Church 

at 7.00pm by Archbishop Diarmuid 

Martin, as Principal Celebrant. 

Saturday 27th August 

A family fun event in Herbert Park 

from 2pm to 5pm with entertainment, 

historical tour of the Park and games 

for young and not so young. 

Parishioners are invited with their 

friends to join in the afternoon, bring 

a picnic and enjoy the festivities. 
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Sunday 28th August 

10.30am Family Mass, the 

Principal Celebrant will be Bishop 

Kevin Doran 

12.00noon Mass with Choir, 

Bishop Kevin Doran will be Principal 

Celebrant. 

3.00pm - A journey through 

Christian Donnybrook will take the 

form of a walkabout visiting St Marys 

Church of Ireland at Simmonscourt 

Road/Anglesea Road junction 

proceeding to Donnybrook Graveyard 

to view the former sites of the earlier 

churches across to Beech Hill to look 

at the outside of the former Wesleyian 

Methodist Chapel of Beaver Row and 

finishing at the Church of the Sacred 

Heart for Ecumenical Prayer Service. 

Photographic Display 

It is planned to have a display of 

photographs and memorabilia in the 

Church of events that have taken place 

there over the years. 

We are appealing to Parishoners to 

bring items to the Parish Centre to 

have them copied for this display, 

material sought could be family events, 

processions, christenings, weddings 

associated with the Church. 

Items will be carefully copied and 

returned to those who provide them. 

Cherish your Parish Church of the 

Sacred Heart by coming along and 

attending by your support of the 

planned celebrations. 
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chapel. This continued until 1787, when it 

was closed and relocated to its current site 

on Anglesea Road. 

Following the succession of James II, a 

Catholic, in 1668, some attempts were 

made by a Fr. Gilmore to reconstruct the 

old Catholic church in the graveyard, with 

the financial assistance of the Protestant 

Archbishop of Dublin, William King. His 

efforts were completed by Fr. Peter Clinch 

in 1788.  

The village was rapidly expanding, with 

the opening of Anglesey bridge over the 

Dodder in 1832, and the Dublin-Kingstown 

Railway in 1834, creating a rise in the 

population of wealthy merchants—mainly 

Protestants, but with many Catholic 

servants. This rise created the need for a 

larger church on a bigger site, which, added 

to the growing disapproval of the Fair, led 

to the establishment of a Committee for the 

Abolition of Donnybrook Fair. The curate, 

Fr. P. D. Nowlan, was active on this 

committee and in 1855, with public funds, 

the licence for the Fair was reluctantly sold 

by the holders—Joseph and Peter 

Madden—for £3,000.  

The P.P., Fr. Andrew O’Connell, now 

announced plans to build a new church, 

dedicated to the Sacred Heart of Jesus as an 

expiatory atonement for the sins and 

excesses of the Fair. This feast had recently 

been given obligatory status by Pius IX in 

1856, and became the dedication of many 

churches as an expiatory monument. A plot 

of land which had been acquired by 

Alderman Arthur Morrison in 1835, on 

which he built his house—Belville—was 

chosen as a suitable prominent location. 

The fact that it overlooked the site of the 

notorious Fair was not coincidental. The 

site was bought for £2,000, and the house 

was let for £60 annual rent. The obelisk 

which was erected to Arthur Morrison 

stands at the junction of Ailesbury and 

Anglesea Roads.  

The original architect, Patrick Byrne, died 

suddenly in 1864, and the project was 

undertaken by Pugin and Ashlin to a 

Gothic revival basilican plan of single nave 

and two side aisles. The builder was 

Michael Meade, who resided at the north 

end of Ailesbury Road, now St. Michael’s 

School; he subsequently built the six 

adjacent houses on Ailesbury Road. 

Archbishop Cullen laid the foundation stone 

of the church on 12th June, 1863, the feast of 

the Sacred Heart, and, as Cardinal Cullen, he 

opened the church on 26th August 1866—

the date of the opening of Donnybrook Fair 

for approximately the previous one hundred 

years.  

The original design involved a spire, as did 

many Pugin-designed churches. This was 

never built—again, often the fate of other 

Pugin-designed churches; the design was 

replaced by the current tower in 1915, at a 

cost of £1,200. The final debt of £2,400 on 

the church was cleared in 1923, when the 

church was consecrated, the total cost of the 

church being £6,200; under Canon Law, only 

a church free of debt may be consecrated.  

The population increased, with the road 

through the village being widened by fifteen 

feet at the level of the old graveyard in 1928, 

when a Catholic population of 4,000 was 

recorded. Hence, further expansion of the 

church was necessary, and resulted in the 

addition of two transepts (1928 to 1935). 

Canon Daniel Molony was responsible for 

overseeing the final building stage. He had 

cleared the entire debt prior to his death, in 

1950, at Belville, which he had inherited 

from his parents and which he bequeathed to 

the Parish, who sold it in 1980/81.  

The church, as we see it today, is a result of 

the most recent development of 1980, which 

was to comply with the Vatican II 

regulations, the architect being Mr Brian 

Brennan.  

This brief history may serve as a reminder 

of the significance of the church as the 

outcome of, not only urban expansion, and 

Catholic Emancipation of 1829, but a 

reminder of the defunct medieval Fair. It 

stands as a monument to the people and 

clergy of earlier times of persecution and 

piety, whose memory we, their descendants, 

should honour in this 150th anniversary year. 

Church of the Sacred Heart 

Many parishioners are unaware of the rich 

history of their church, and the many phases 

of historical and architectural changes which 

have taken place. As we approach the 

celebration of the building of the church 150 

years ago, it seems appropriate to recall 

briefly some of these events.  

The village of Donnybrook has a long and 

eventful history, which is closely linked to the 

church. The origin of the village is associated 

with St. Broc, who founded her monastery 

and church in the eighth century on a rural 

woodland site which has been identified as 

the location of the old graveyard beside the 

Garda station built in 1931. The church was 

dedicated, as was common practice in 

medieval times, to St. Mary; a Celtic church 

is recorded as existing there at the time of the 

Norman invasion, when it was granted 

parochial status by the first Irish Archbishop 

of Dublin, St Laurence O’Toole, in the 12th 

century.  

The event which was of importance to the 

foundation and dedication of the current 

church occurred in 1204, when King John 

granted a licence to the Judiciary of Ireland to 

hold a fair for eight days at Donnybrook, on 

the left bank of the Dodder River, on a green 

site now occupied by Bective and Wesley 

rugby grounds. This Fair gradually extended 

to fifteen days, and was always begun on a 

designated feast day—a common practice of 

the time in an orthodox society. Two days’ 

tolls, taken at the Fair, were paid to the 

Archbishop of Dublin. The Fair gradually 

changed from a ‘carnival of light-hearted 

gaiety’ to an occasion of a drunken riot of 

moral degeneracy and crime.  

Following the Act of Suppression of the 

monasteries, in 1539, the church of St. Mary 

was closed for Catholic worship and, in the 

reign of Elizabeth I, became a Protestant 


